
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 

COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

AGENDA PACKET 

 
For the Regular Meeting of  Wednesday 

 

February 1, 2017 

 
7:00 P.M. Regular Meeting 

 
Community Center 

1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY  

A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

      President – Robert Leete • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Bill Mayer • Director – Bill Pease • Director – Chris Steele 



 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for February 1, 2017 - Pg.1 

 
1097601-2 

          
 

 
 
 
NOTICE OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday February 1, 2017 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
3. Roll Call 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
During Public Comments, the public may address the Board on any issue within the District’s jurisdiction 
which is not on the Agenda.  The public may comment on any item on the Agenda at the time the item is 
before the Board for consideration.  Any person wishing to speak must come up and speak from the podium 
and will have 3 minutes to make their comment.  There will be no dialog between the Board and the 
commenter.  Any clarifying questions from the Board must go through the President. 
 

C. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be 
enacted by one motion. 
1. Approval of DRAFT minutes of regular meeting for January 18, 2017 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices  
3. Adopt and Present Proclamation 17-01 thanking and honoring Mary Nejedly-Piepho for her twelve 

years of dedicated service on the Board of Supervisors and her representation of Discovery Bay.   
 

D. AREA AGENCIES REPORTS / PRESENTATION 
1. Supervisor Diane Burgis, District III Report 
2. Sheriff’s Office Report  
3. CHP Report 

 
E. LIAISON REPORTS 

1. Trans-Plan Report 
2.   County Planning Commission Report 
3. Code Enforcement Report 
4. Special Districts Report**  
**These meetings are held Quarterly 
 

F. PRESENTATIONS 
 

G. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS 
1. Board Update on Water Meter Installation Project. (Oral Report) 
2. Consider and direct Town Counsel on whether or not to send a letter to the third party bill service 

provider, doxo, demanding doxo cease and desist use of the Town’s website, logo or any reference to 
the District on doxo’s website. 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Robert Leete • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Bill Mayer • Director – Bill Pease • Director – Chris Steele 
 

 

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 
 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Agenda for February 1, 2017 - Pg.2 

 
1097601-2 

 
 

3. Consider authorizing the Board President to sign, on behalf of the District, the third Amendment to the 
employment contract with Interim General Manager Catherine Kutsuris to provide for services on an as-
needed-basis not to exceed 120 hours during the period February 1, 2017 through June 30, 2017. 
 

H. MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

I.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS ONLY  
 
J. DIRECTORS’ REPORTS  

1. Standing Committee Reports 
2. Other Reportable Items 

 
K. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
L. CORRESPONDENCE RECEIVED  

1. Request Date January 9, 2017 from Bill Helfrick – Water Meter Bid Documents. 
2. Received January 10, 2017 – Contra Costa County Clerk-Recorder-Elections Department - Vote-N-Go- 

Program. 
3. Request Date January 23, 2017 from Bill Helfrick – Reconsideration of the Water Meter Installation 

Project. 
4. Received January 25, 2017 Letter from East County Voters for Equal Protection regarding an ECCFPD 

Funding Workshop on February 23, 2017. 
 

M. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 
N.  OPEN SESSION DISCLOSURE OF CLOSED SESSION AGENDA  

(Government Code Section 54957.7) 
  
O. CLOSED SESSION: 

1. Conference with Legal Counsel—Anticipated Litigation pursuant to Government Code Section 
54956.9(b) - (One Potential Case)  

 
P. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION; REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION  

(Government Code Section 54957.1)  
 
Q. ADJOURNMENT     

1. Adjourn to the next regular meeting of February 15, 2017 beginning at 7:00 p.m. at the Community 
Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  

 
 
“This agenda shall be made available upon request in alternative formats to persons with a disability, as required 
by the American with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12132) and the Ralph M. Brown Act (California 
Government Code § 54954.2). Persons requesting a disability related modification or accommodation in order to 
participate in the meeting should contact the Town of Discovery Bay, at (925)634-1131, during regular business 
hours, at least twenty-four hours prior to the time of the meeting.” 
 
"Materials related to an item on the Agenda submitted to the Town of Discovery Bay after distribution of the 
agenda packet are available for public inspection in the District Office located at 1800 Willow Lake Road during 
normal business hours." 
 



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for January 18, 2017 - Pg.1 

 

          
 

 
 
 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
Wednesday January 18, 2017 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
Community Center 
1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard, Discovery Bay, California 
Website address: www.todb.ca.gov 
 
REGULAR MEETING 7:00 P.M. 
A. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. Call business meeting to order 7:00 p.m. – by President Leete 
2. Pledge of Allegiance – Led by President Leete 
3. Roll Call – All Present 
  

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS (Individual Public Comments will be limited to a 3-minute time limit) 
Public Comment regarding the water meter project:  

1. Reconsider the water meter installation project – future meeting agenda; 
2. Not opposed of having a water meter, happy with the work that the board and town has done for the 

community.  Wasn’t aware of any public notification, only found out about the $906.20 fee from the paper 
and not happy about the cost of the meter. 

 

C. AREA AGENCIES REPORTS / PRESENTATION 
1. East Contra Costa Fire Protection District Report – No Report 
 

D. MONTHLY WATER AND WASTEWATER REPORT – VEOLIA 
1. Veolia Report – Month of December 2016 
Project Manager Berney Sadler – Provided the details of the December 2016 Monthly Operations Report.  There 
was discussion regarding fire hydrant flushing.  The process is quarterly and during the time of water conservation 
the flushing was done more often, with automatic flushing that begins in the morning.  Backlog work orders are no 
longer an issue. 
 

E. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters listed under the CONSENT CALENDAR are considered by the District to be routine and will be enacted 
by one motion. 
1. Approval of regular meeting minutes January 4, 2017. 
2. Approve Register of District Invoices 
3. Authorize the payment of $475.20 to Bob Murray and Associates for additional expenses related to the 

General Manager recruitment. 
Motion by: Director Pease to approve the Consent Calendar 
Second by: Vice –President Graves 
Public Comment – Regarding item E-3 – opposes additional expenses to Bob Murray and Associates. 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0 
 

President Leete – Reordered Business and Action Items - F-3 to F-1 
 

F. BUSINESS AND ACTION ITEMS: 
1. Public Hearing to Review and Consider Adopting Resolution 2017-01 approving proceedings to finance 

improvements to the District’s municipal water and wastewater system, approving the issuance of water and 
wastewater revenue bonds by the Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority, and approving related documents 
and actions. 
General Manager Davies – Provided the details of the Resolution 2017-01 approving proceedings to finance 
improvements to the District’s municipal water and wastewater system, approving the issuance of water and 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY 
A COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 

 

President – Robert Leete • Vice-President – Kevin Graves • Director – Bill Mayer • Director – Bill Pease • Director – Chris Steele 
 

 

Agenda Item C-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/


 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for January 18, 2017 - Pg.2 

 

wastewater revenue bonds by the Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority, and approving related documents 
and actions and will summarize with a background of the item. 

1. State Law requires all residential water consumers to be on metered system by the year 2025. 
2. Discovery Bay West, Centex, and Ravenswood – received smart water meters at time of construction 

(cost paid by the developer).  These homes are billed and pay for their water usage. 
3. There are 3,531 water users that are not metered – estimate by County Parcel Tax Map and staff 

observation. 
4. Unmetered customers pay a flat rate on the property tax bill (regardless of the amount of water 

consumed) 
5. Currently underway for installing smart water meters – installs are mostly residential, a few vacant lots) 
6. Two separate lots will receive separate meters for each Town connection 
7. Cost of the project break down; cost of products are fixed ($1,288,720.00), cost of construction is fixed 

($1,391,490.00) 
8. Construction contingency – estimated at (9.4%, total $131,149.00) 
9. All other staffing and support – estimate at ($300,000.00) 
10. Total estimated project - $3,111,359.00 

The estimated total takes in consideration – meter variables exist for each individual location (size of meter box, 
difficulty of impediments; such as encasement of the existing meter box and hardscape or plant barriers).  
Properties that have extreme construction impairments (excess cost not included in the project estimate and the 
responsibility of the homeowner. The November 29

, 
2016 board workshop briefed on installation costs variables and 

provided resident payback options.  The board concurred by consensus that cost will be  spread equally among 
those residents receiving a new meter and payback to the water reserves would be a 3 year plan billed on property 
tax roll.  The board meeting on December 21, 2016, Interim General Manager Kutsuris suggested that the board 
consider shifting the cost of the water meter project out of reserve funds and add to the bond funding for 
consideration for the Wastewater Filtration Project. The meeting on January 4, 2017 the board discussed options 
and considered to fund the Water Meter Project, in whole or in part, with bond funding and or reserves, and 
considered various payback options for residents receiving the new water meter. The board decided to finance the 
Water Meter Project in full through bond funding.  The new meters could be paid in full at no interest or over a ten 
year period with interest. The new meter cost of $906.20 was calculated – rounding total estimated project cost to 
$3.2 million, dividing the estimated 3,531 new meter installs.  An estimated install of $906.20 at a 10 year estimated 
interest rate of 4.5%, the monthly payment would be approximately $9.40 per month, $112.80 annually, $1,128.00 
(end of ten year total interest) $221.74.  Before you for adoption is the revised Resolution No. 2017-01 – passing 
this resolution gives authorization to the Public Financing Authority to issue bonds that would finance the $7.4 
million Wastewater Filtration Project underway at the Wastewater Treatment Plant No. 2 and the $3.11 million dollar 
Water Meter Completion Project, also currently underway.  Principal amount sought under this bond of 
$11,500,000.00 constitutes a not to exceed (gives flexibility what the cost may or not be at the time of issuance).  
Also, note that this is a revised version of the resolution that was originally sent out in the packet. Staff is here to 
answer any questions, 
Public Comments: 

1. Regarding the notification of the Water Meter Project, (Discovery Bay Residents not represented well on 
this project). Does welcome the water meters. Did not receive a brochure from the Town. 

2. Regarding the 23 questions that were submitted to the Town via email.  On our website there are FAQ 
that should answer the 23 questions. 

Legal Counsel Attebery – For the record if the 23 questions turned into a Public Document Request, the Town 
could provide documents responsive to his request, however in terms of asking written response to each question, 
we don’t provide that.  Most of the questions are answered on the website and through the FAQ. 

3. Regarding the Town borrowing the money through a bond rather than through the reserves. 
4. Regarding the issuance of the bonds to pay for the Water Meter Project – feels that there are sufficient 

funds in the reserves, and requesting reconsideration of the Water Meter Project. 
5. Regarding owning homes here for the last 16 years – did not know anything about the project, and the 

cost of the water meters, owns 4 houses in Discovery Bay, however is in favor of the water meters. 
6. Regarding the notification of the Water Meter Project. 
7. Regarding the installation of the Water Meter Project; does not want to pay someone else for the 

installation. 
8. Regarding the State Law of installation of the meters by 2025; what is the rush, not properly notified. 
9. Regarding Nextdoor and the use of Social Media to post our agendas.  Did not receive a brochure from 

the Town. 
10. Regarding owns 2 homes, did not receive a brochure from the Town. How will the homeowner be billed?  

Once you receive a water meter you will be monthly, and that service fee will drop off of your property tax 
bill. 

11. Regarding the cost of the meter and the installation.  Did not receive a brochure from the Town. 
12. Regarding the response of the 23 questions submitted via email.  Recommended calling Town Staff. 
13. Regarding the cost of the meter, should not have to subsidize. 
14. Regarding reconsideration or alternatives to the cost. 

Legal Counsel Attebery – has been discussing the water meter installation for approximately 3 years – passed in 

Agenda Item C-1



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for January 18, 2017 - Pg.3 

 

2004 as a State mandated requirement by 2025.  This board gave staff recommendation to start this year, in terms 
of financing.  Before the board this evening is a staff recommendation to consider financing the meter project 
through the bond to allow more flexibility. 
The discussion continued within the board regarding the Public Comment questions related to the difference 
between the surplus and reserves (restricted fund and unrestricted funds)  
Legal Counsel Attebery – there is a reserve policy that identifies what should be used for a disaster, there is a 
baseline for what needs to be in the reserve fund; if reserve funds were used for the water meter project those 
funds would need to be replaced.  There are several different accounts – Water, Wastewater, Parks, Lighting, 
Landscaping; which are maintained for maintenance and repair (restricted funds).  
Finance Manager Breitstein – there is a reserve for water and for wastewater ($4mil).  Infrastructure replacement 
funds – generators, vehicle, sewer replacement and water replacements. Water and wastewater was combined and 
the Finance Department has separated the accounts. Water reserves amount (including the infrastructure 
replacement is approximately $3mil and the wastewater reserves is the remaining amount.   How was the cost of 
the meter determined; the installation of the water meters is a contract in the amount of $1.3 mil; spread that out 
across the 3,500 homes that is $394.00.  On top of that is the product (meter, meter reader, rocks, bricks, etc.) 
each cost as well, total products is roughly $1.288 mil (another $364.00 per home). If you add those numbers you 
are close to $758.00 for this meter project, not including the contingency and the other staffing and support.  The 
meter in the ground can withstand water – researched different companies for the project; tested meters in the 
ground, long lifespan (warranty meter is a life expectancy of 20 years). 
The discussion continued regarding the meters; the access to a customer portal that allows you to see your usage, 
will give you leak updates; will notify the Town office of a leak.  The meters have been purchased in advance to 
eliminate costs and anticipation of having a shortage of meters once the project gets started.  
The board gave a background of the water meters and the communication to the residents.  The board discussed 
that all residents would receive the notification for the project well in advance. Also, in the committee meeting there 
was discussion regarding a tiered level, where a resident with a simple installation would pay for the simple install 
and for a more expensive installation that resident would pay for the more expensive install. 
There was discussion within the board and staff regarding the financing of the water meter project through reserves 
or through the bond, along with continuing the discussion of a tiered level and the Notice to Proceed sent to JW 
Backhoe. 
Motion by: Director Pease to adopt the revised Resolution 2017-01 which authorizes the Discovery Bay Public 
Finance Authority to  issue Bonds to finance the improvements to the Town of Discovery Bay’s Water and 
Wastewater Enterprises with a principal amount not to exceed $11,500,000; approves the Installment Sale 
Agreements,  the Preliminary Official Statement and other documents that are on file with the Secretary, along with 
changes as the Designated Officers may deem necessary or appropriate; and authorizes the General Manager, the 
Finance Manager, and the Secretary in the name of and on behalf of the District to take actions necessary in order 
to consummate the lawful issuance and sale of the Bonds; and direct the General Manager to work with the 
Financial Advisor, Bond Counsel, Underwriter and Trustee to proceed with the issuance of not to exceed 
$11,500,000 principal amount of Discovery Bay Public Financing Authority, Series 2017 Water and Wastewater 
Enterprise Revenue Bonds.  
Second by: President Leete 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 3 - President Leete, Director Mayer, Director Pease; NOES: 2 – Vice-President 
Graves, Director Steele 
2. Consider for approval moving the date of the Annual Board Workshop that is currently scheduled for January 

21, 2017 to January 28, 2017 or to another date. 
General Manager Davies – Provided the details for the annual board workshop and the need to reschedule due to a 
board member not available on January 21

st
.  The new meeting date will be Thursday, February 2, 2017 beginning 

at 6:30 p.m. 
3. Review and Consider Adopting Resolution 2017-03 approving the proposed Debt Management Policy as 

required by California Government Code 8855(i) 
General Manager Davies – Provided the details of a Debt Management Policy.  The policy ensures that the long 
term debt is financed in a prudent way.  
Finance Manager Breitstein – Provided additional details regarding a new Government Code in which we are now 
in compliance of. 
Motion by: Director Pease to adopt revised Resolution 2017-03 Approving the Proposed Debt Management Policy 
as required by California Government Code 8855(i) 
Second by: Vice-President Graves 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0 
4. Consider approving the proposal by the Board President to make modifications to the Board Bylaws and 

Policies related to staff sub-committees and regional committees. 
General Manager Davies – Provided the details of the proposed Bylaws modifications related to the staff sub-
committee and regional committees. 
President Leete – Provided additional details regarding the transition to standing committees which will meet along 
with the public, and an opportunity at an informal level for discussion.  The Brown Act does not determine if a 
meeting is informal or formal, however, Roberts Rule of Order does apply to those meeting.  The discussion 
continued regarding the time of the meeting. 

Agenda Item C-1



 

 
Town of Discovery Bay Board of Directors 

Meeting Minutes for January 18, 2017 - Pg.4 

 

Legal Counsel Attebery – Stated that a standing committee is subject to the Brown Act because the legislative body 
creates the committee.  The desire to have the entire board is allowable under the Brown Act, however, only the 
two members are the members of the committee who can speak; the other board members that attend cannot 
speak. 
The discussion continued regarding the 5 proposed standing committees along with how the members of the board 
would be assigned, along with the regional committees.  President Leete will amend his proposal to withdraw any 
discussion regarding the Regional Committees and move to a future meeting. 
Motion by: Director Pease to adopt Resolution No. 2017-04 and amend the Bylaws to reflect the change as Section 
2 Terms and Responsibilities of Elected Officers and remove the references in respect to Regional Representation 
Second by: Director Mayer 
Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0 
5. Assignment/Selection of Committee Assignments by Board Members: 

 Finance Committee – President Bob Leete 

 Water and Wastewater Committee – Vice-President Kevin Graves 

 Parks and Recreation Committee – Director Chris Steele 

 Water and Wastewater Committee – Director Bill Pease 

 Finance Committee – Director Bill Mayer 

 Internal Operations Committee – President Bob Leete 

 Internal Operations Committee – Vice-President Kevin Graves 

 Communications Committee – Director Chris Steele 

 Parks and Recreation Committee – Director Bill Pease 

 Communications Committee – Director Bill Mayer 
Motion by: Vice-President Graves to accept the appointments as volunteers to the committees for Finance, Water 
and Wastewater, Parks and Recreation, Internal Operations, and Communications. 

 Second by: Director Pease 
 Vote: Motion Carried – AYES: 5, NOES: 0 

 

G.  INFORMATIONAL ITEMS ONLY (NO ACTION NECESSARY) 
1. District Financial Statement Report for the Period ending September 30, 2016 

 

H. PRESENTATIONS 
 None 
 

I. PRESIDENT REPORT AND DIRECTORS’ COMMENTS 
 None 
 

J. MANAGER’S REPORT – Discussion and Possible Action 
 None 
 

K. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT – Discussion and Possible Action 
General Manager Davies – Provided the details regarding the Solar Dryer panel which has been replaced, price 
$500.00; Contra Costa County Health update – has not tested any positives for the Blue Green Algae, cautiously it 
is safe for swimming, however keep your eyes open, could possibly return. 

 

L. DISTRICT LEGAL COUNSEL REPORT 
 None 
 

M. SUB-COMMITTEE UPDATES – Discussion and Possible Action 
 

N. CORRESPONDENCE – Discussion and Possible Action  
 None 
 

O. PUBLIC RECORD REQUESTS RECEIVED 
1. Request from Bill Helfrick - Water Meter Installation Cost and Financing – Request date December 21, 2016. 

 

P. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 None 
 

Legal Counsel Attebery – Provided the details regarding social media and that there is no legal requirement that you 
cannot provide agenda to social media, however, the recommendation is to stay off of social media.  
 
Q.  ADJOURNMENT     

1. The meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m.at the Community Center located at 1601 Discovery Bay Boulevard.  
 

 
//cmc – 01-23-2017 
http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes 

Agenda Item C-1

http://www.todb.ca.gov/agendas-minutes


Town of Discovery Bay 
"A Community Services District" 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date 

February 1, 2017 

Prepared By: 	Dina Breitstein, Finance Manager & Lesley Marable, Accountant 
Submitted By: Mike Davies, General Manager  a,A 

Agenda Title 

Approve Register of District Invoices 

Recommended Action 

Staff recommends that the Board approve the listed invoices for payment 

Executive Summary 

District invoices are paid on a regular basis, and must obtain Board authorization prior to payment. Staff recommends 
Board authorization in order that the District can continue to pay warrants in a timely manner. 

Fiscal Impact: 

Amount Requested $ 161,977.24 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: Yes (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund # See listing of invoices. Category: Operating Expenses and Capital Improvements 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 

Attachments 

Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Town of Discovery Bay CSD 2016/2017 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Discovery Bay Lighting & Landscape District # 8 2016/2017 
Request For Authorization to Pay Invoices for the Discovery Bay Lighting & Landscape District # 9 2016/2017 

AGENDA ITEM: C-2 



Vendor Name Invoice Date Invoice Number Description  Amount

Contra Costa County Reimbursement

Tee Janitorial 1/20/2017 8619 Janitorial $80.00

Watersavers Irrigation 1/13/2017 1788814-00 Irrigarion Service $100.10

ProPet Distributors 1/5/2017 115829 Trash bags $27.21

Contra Costa County Sub-Total $207.31

Water

Badger Meter 12/31/2016 80009747 ORION Cellular reading 2192.96

HD Supply Waterworks 12/16/2016 G566728 B12 Meter Box 420.00

JW Backhoe & Construction 1/11/2017 2734 Water Leak Repair 2999.78

JW Backhoe & Construction 1/11/2017 2733 Water Leak Repair 3733.48

JW Backhoe & Construction 1/11/2017 2732 Paving 5980.98

R&B Company 1/16/2017 S1621630.001 Water Main Repairs 442.63

Luhdorff & Scalmanini 12/31/2016 32470 General Services 10825.00

Luhdorff & Scalmanini 12/31/2016 32469 PLC upgrades 6444.74

Paul E Vaz Trucking, Inc. 12/30/2016 46455 Freight 834.84

Paul E Vaz Trucking, Inc. 12/30/2016 46454 Freight 755.95

Univar 12/29/2016 SJ792184 Chemicals 197.50

Univar 12/29/2016 SJ792183 Chemicals 237.00

Univar 1/18/2017 SJ795332 Chemicals 217.25

Univar 1/18/2017 SJ795333 Chemicals 205.40

Freedom Mailing 1/12/2017 30504 Bill Processing 1007.62

Big Dog Computer Systems 1/16/2017 BDC33277 IT Consulting 492.59

Big Dog Computer Systems 1/16/2017 BDC33274 IT Consulting 646.00

Big Dog Computer Systems 1/10/2017 BDC33270 IT Consulting 277.51

JW Backhoe & Construction 1/20/2017 LSCE #16-5-102 PP#1 Progress payment Water Meter $80,762.30

Tee Janitorial 1/20/2017 8619 Janitorial $285.60

Cintas 1/11/2017 185587476 Uniforms $6.86

Cintas 1/18/2017 185588433 Uniforms $6.86

Megapath 1/17/2017 8293066 Telecommunications $405.02

SDRMA 1/23/2017 21681 Ancillary Benefits $469.63

NeoPost 1/15/2017 4658 Postage $256.00

ReliaStar 1/31/2017 Employee 457b Contribution $433.02

Brentwood Press 1/27/2017 10176-Post Water Meter Project Mailings $1,030.00

Water Sub-Total $121,566.52

Wastewater

State Water Res Contrl BD 1/11/2017 WD-0125044 Permit Fee 19719.00

Office Depot 1/5/2017 892046153001 Office Supplies 10.71

Office Depot 1/5/2017 892046152001 Office Supplies $93.39

Big Dog Computer 1/10/2017 BDC33272 IT Consulting $283.75

Big Dog Computer 1/16/2017 BDC33277 IT Consulting $738.88

Big Dog Computer 1/16/2017 BDC33274 IT Consulting $969.00

Tee Janitorial 1/20/2017 8619 Janitorial $428.40

Cintas 1/11/2017 185587476 Uniforms $24.50

Cintas 1/18/2017 185588433 Uniforms $24.50

MegaPath 1/17/2017 8293066 Telecommunications $607.54

SDRMA 1/23/2017 21681 Ancillary Benefits $704.44

NeoPost 1/15/2017 4658 Postage $384.00

Shred-It 1/7/2017 8121548121 Document Shredding $115.02

Chris Steele Jan-17 Expense Report Expense Report $345.00

Bill Pease Jan-17 Expense Report Expense Report $345.00

Bill Mayer Jan-17 Expense Report Expense Report $495.75

Some Gave All Jan-17 Expense Report Expense Report $755.66

Robert Leete Jan-17 Expense Report Expense Report $345.00

ReliaStar 1/31/2017 Employee 457b Contribution $649.53

Wastewater Sub-Total $27,039.07

Community Center

Community Center Sub-Total $0.00

Grand Total $148,812.90

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices  (RFA)

For The Meeting On February 2, 2017 

Town of Discovery Bay CSD

For Fiscal Year’s 7/16 - 6/17

Agenda Item C-2



Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date  Amount
Office Depot 892045729001 Office Supplies 01/05/17 320.00

Brentwood Press 195029 Activity guide 12/23/16 5478.00

Burkett's Pool Plastering INC. 97966 Handrail & Deck Sealing 01/03/16 3,800.00

US Healthworks 3044707-CA Community Center/ Recreation New Hire test 01/29/17 25.00

State of California Department of Justice 210901 Background Check 01/05/17 98.00

Discovery Pest Control 200730 Pest Control 12/30/16 99.00

Big Dog Computer BDC33275 IT Support 01/16/17 97.50

Hydropoint 23114 Weather Track Renewal 01/12/17 225.00

Propet Distributors, Inc. 115829 Trash Liners 01/05/17 9.07

Delta Debris Box Service 1278801 20 Yard Bin 12/31/16 408.00

Denalect Alarm Company R41370 Ouarterly Alarm Charge 01/03/17 90.00

Watersavers Irrigation Inc. 1788814-00 Landscape Maintenance 01/13/17 63.70

Tee Janitorial 8619 Janitorial 01/20/17 $980.00

Cintas 185588433 Uniforms 01/18/17 $108.47

Cintas 185587476 Uniforms 01/11/17 $108.47

MegaPath 8293066 Telecommunications 01/17/17 $290.67

ASCAP 500750571 License 12/20/16 $341.00

Total $12,541.88

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices  (RFA)

For The Meeting On February 2, 2017

Town of Discovery Bay, D.Bay L&L Park #8

For Fiscal Year’s 7/16 - 6/17

Agenda Item C-2



Vendor Name Invoice Number Description Invoice Date  Amount

Propet Distributors Inc. 115829 Trash bags 01/05/17 9.07

Watersavers Irrigation 1788814-00 Irrigation repairs 01/13/17 18.25

Delta Debris Box 1278801 20 Yard bin 12/31/2016 $204.68

Tee Janitorial 8619 Janitorial 01/20/17 $280.00

Cintas 185588433 Uniforms 01/18/17 $55.08

Cintas 185587476 Uniforms 01/11/17 $55.38

Total $622.46

Request For Authorization To Pay Invoices   (RFA)

For The Meeting On Feruary 2, 2017

Town of Discovery Bay, D.Bay L&L Park #9 (Ravenswood)

For Fiscal Year’s 7/16 - 6/17

Agenda Item C-2



Agenda Item C-3



Town of Discovery Bay 
"A Community Services District" 

STAFF REPORT 

Meeting Date 

February 1, 2017 

Prepared By: Mike Davies, General Manager AO>  
Submitted By: Mike Davies, General Manager 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Amount Requested $ 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

Prog/Fund # 	Category: Pers. Optg. Cap. 	-or- CIP# 	Fund# 

Previous Relevant Board Actions for This Item 

Attachments 

Screenshots (2 pages) taken of doxo website at www.doxo.caom/info/town-discovery-bay-csd  
Cease and Desist letter to doxo written by Town Counsel Rod Attebery of Neumiller & Beardslee 

Agenda Title: 

Consider and direct Town Counsel on whether or not to send a letter to the third party bill service provider, doxo, 
demanding doxo cease and desist use of the Town's website, logo or any reference to the District on doxo's website. 

Recommended Action 

Consider and direct Town Counsel on whether or not to send a letter to the third party bill service provider, doxo, 
demanding doxo cease and desist use of the Town's website, logo or any reference to the District on doxo's website. 

Executive Summary 

On January 12, 2017, staff received an email from another public entity that advised a bill pay website by the name of 
doxo was illegally using agency logos. We were advised that doxo did remove agency logos when specifically 
contacted and directed to do so. 

Doxo is a third-party bill pay service provider. 	It is a user-based website that compiles users' bills and sends out 
payment. It does not appear that they require authorization from any agency prior to information being added by users. 
To staff's recollection, we have never received a payment via doxo. 

Screenshots of the Discovery Bay version of the doxo website are attached. 	The website address is 
https://www.doxo.com/info/town-discovery-bay-csd.  

Referring to the screenshots, there are two places where the Town of Discovery Bay logo are used: 1) In the upper left 
corner affixed to a mock street address sign, and 2) in a screenshot link of the opening page of our Town's website. 

It is unknown the manner in which doxo displayed the logos of other agencies in the past so as to prompt agency 
demand for removal, but their current website may be less concerning than what was done in the past. There is a 
disclaimer on the doxo website that states, "Logos and other trademarks within this site are the property of their 
respective owners. doxo is not an affiliate of Town Of Discovery Bay Csd (CA). " 

Town Counsel, Rod Attebery, has drafted a letter to doxo demanding that they cease and desist use of our Town's 
website, logo or any reference to the District on their website (see attached). If the Board so directs, this letter (or a 
modified version as determined by the Board) will be sent to doxo. 

AGENDA ITEM: G-2 



 

Agenda Item G-2



 

Agenda Item G-2



Agenda Item G-2



Agenda Item G-2



1 
1097531-1

THIRD AMENDMENT TO EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT 

BETWEEN CATHERINE O. KUTSURIS AND THE 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY BAY COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

This Third Amendment (“Amendment”) to the Employment Contract between 

Catherine O. Kutsuris (“Employee”) and Town of Discovery Bay Community Services 

District, a community services district organized under the laws of the State of California 

(“Employer”), dated February 1, 2016 (“Contract”) is made and entered into this ____ day of 

February, 2017. 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, the original Contract term continued until Employer’s appointment of a 

permanent General Manager; and 

WHEREAS, Employer appointed a permanent General Manager on December 21, 2016; 

and 

WHEREAS, the incoming permanent General Manager’s duties became effective 

January 3, 2017; and  

WHEREAS, Employer and Employee entered into the Second Amendment of the 

Contract so that Employee would provide hourly assistance as needed to the new permanent 

General Manager during the month of January 2017; and  

WHEREAS, Employer now desires to extend Employee’s term and Employee has 

agreed to continue to be employed by Employer as a Part Time Employee with the duty of 

providing transition services and institutional knowledge to permanent General Manager for the 

additional period of February 1, 2017 through June 30, 2017, in an amount not to exceed 120 

hours; and  

WHEREAS, the Employer and the Employee desire to amend Sections 2, 4, and 14 of 

the Contract to reflect the extension of the existing Contract term for Employee’s employment as 

a Part Time Employee through June 30, 2017; and  

WHEREAS, both parties desire to amend the Contract to reflect this change. 

Agreement  

NOW, THEREFORE, the Contract is amended as follows: 

1. Section 2.E of the Contract is amended to read as follows:  

Agenda Item G-3



2 
1097531-1

E.   Effective January 3, 2017, Employee shall no longer be employed as 

Interim General Manager and shall remain employed by the Employer as a Part 

Time Employee to provide, at the request of permanent General Manager, 

transition services and institutional knowledge to Employer’s permanent General 

Manager through June 30, 2017. For the period of February 1, 2017 through June 

30, 2017, Employee will work a maximum of 120 hours.

2. Section 4.B of the Contract will be amended to read as follows: 

B.  During the period of January 3, 2017 through June 30, 2017 Employer 

agrees to compensate Employee for her Part Time Employee duties of providing 

transition services and institutional knowledge to Employer’s permanent General 

Manager at a rate of $64.38 per hour, an amount equal to Interim General 

Manager salary converted to hourly compensation, payable bi-weekly and subject 

to usual and normal withholdings.  

3. Section 14.D of the Contract is amended to read as follows: 

D.  During the period of January 3, 2017 through June 30, 2017, for the 

purposes of Employer’s Personnel Manual, Employee shall be considered a “Part 

Time Employee.”  

4. This Amendment shall become effective February 1, 2017. 

5. Except as modified by this Amendment, the Contract shall remain unchanged and is in 

full force and effect.   

6. The terms and provisions of this Amendment are incorporated by this reference into the 

Contract as though set forth in full therein. 

7. This Amendment may be executed in any number of counterparts with the same effect as 

if the parties had all signed the same document, and which together shall constitute one and the 

same instrument.  

Agenda Item G-3



3 
1097531-1

EMPLOYER EMPLOYEE 

TOWN OF DISCOVERY 
COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

By: ____________________ ____________________ 
       Robert Leete, President  Catherine O. Kutsuris 

Agenda Item G-3



Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-1



Agenda Item L-2



Agenda Item L-2



Agenda Item L-2



Agenda Item L-3



Agenda Item L-4



Agenda Item L-4



Agenda Item L-4



Agenda Item L-4



Agenda Item L-4



Agenda Item L-4



Agenda Item L-4


	02-01-17 Agenda Meeting Cover Sheet.pdf
	02-01-17 Agenda NB Revised Final.pdf
	C-1 DRAFT Minutes 01-18-17.pdf
	C-2-1 Staff Report Approve Register of District Invoices (003).pdf
	C-2-2 Copy of RFA Town Water Wastewater.pdf
	C-2-3 Copy of RFA LL #8.pdf
	C-2-4 Copy of RFA LL #9.pdf
	C-3 Proclamation 17-01 County Supervisor Mary Nejedly-Piepho.pdf
	G-2-1 Staff Report Doxo Cease  Desist Rough Draft.pdf
	G-2-2 Doxo Screenshot.2-pg.Revised.pdf
	G-2-3 Letter RA - Cease and Desist letter to doxo.pdf
	G-3 Third Amendment to Employment Contract-Catherine Kutsuris.pdf
	L-1 Request Bill Helfrick – Water Meter Bid Documents – Request Date – 2017-01-09.pdf
	L-2 CCC Clerk-Recorder-Elections - Vote-N-Go- Program – 2017-01-10.pdf
	L-3 Request Bill Helfrick – Reconsideration Water Meter Installation Project – Request Date – 01-23-2017.pdf
	L-4 Received - Letter East County Voters  Equal Protection re ECCFPD Funding Workshop.pdf

